
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 
The council is now holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain 
the safety of the public, staff and councillors.

The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and 
input into the decision-making process.

Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda.

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus 

DATE: Monday, 19 October 2020

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting

AGENDA

THE PROCEEDINGS OF THIS MEETING CAN BE ACCESSED ON 
THE DAY VIA THE FOLLOWING LINK:

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_NjFkYjdmYjUtNjNiYS00ZGQ2LTk0MjgtMTYzOW
UwMGQ5NDc2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268
c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-
938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d 

1  Apologies 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of meeting held on 21 September 2020 and matters 
arising 

(Pages 1 - 4)

4  Salford Community Leisure - Summer Provision 2020 (Pages 5 - 8)

5  Waste Strategy and GM Contract - Update (to follow/be tabled) 

6  Dog Fouling - Renewal of Public Space Protection Orders - 
Update (to follow/be tabled) 

Public Document Pack

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjFkYjdmYjUtNjNiYS00ZGQ2LTk0MjgtMTYzOWUwMGQ5NDc2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjFkYjdmYjUtNjNiYS00ZGQ2LTk0MjgtMTYzOWUwMGQ5NDc2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjFkYjdmYjUtNjNiYS00ZGQ2LTk0MjgtMTYzOWUwMGQ5NDc2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjFkYjdmYjUtNjNiYS00ZGQ2LTk0MjgtMTYzOWUwMGQ5NDc2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjFkYjdmYjUtNjNiYS00ZGQ2LTk0MjgtMTYzOWUwMGQ5NDc2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjFkYjdmYjUtNjNiYS00ZGQ2LTk0MjgtMTYzOWUwMGQ5NDc2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


7  Work Programme 2020/21 (Pages 9 - 12)

8  Any other business 

9  Next Meeting - 16 November 2020 

Contact Officer: Mike Relph Senior Democratic Services Adviser
Tel No: 0161 793 3013
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL

21 September 2020

Meeting commenced: 2.05 p.m.
“                  ended: 4:10 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Burch - in the Chair

Councillors Barnes, Fletcher, Karen Garrido, Humphreys, Mullen, Ryan, 
Turner and Joan Walsh.

Councillor David Lancaster - Lead Member for Environment and 
Community Safety

OFFICERS:  David Seager - Assistant Director, Operational and Commercial 
   Services

           Jeanette Staley - Head of Community Safety
           John Wooderson - Head of Service, Urban Renewal 
           Tom Martin - Chief Inspector, Greater Manchester Police

Mike Relph - Senior Democratic Services Adviser

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Walker, Warner and 
Wheeler

2. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 17th February, 2020, were approved 
as a correct record.

3. NITROUS OXIDE

The Assistant Director Healthcare Public Health submitted a report indicating there 
had been local intelligence the use of nitrous oxide was an increasing concern for 
Salford residents. The public health team in response, had coordinated a response in 
collaboration with Early Break (young persons’ substance misuse service) and the Big 
Life assertive outreach team, from which it had been ascertained:

 users were predominantly teenagers and young adults who
           had a licence to drive

 location of use was chiefly in empty car parks at night 
 users either left the used nitrous oxide cannisters in the car park or fly tipped
 significant litter was left in public places as a result. 

The public health team had placed an article in the August 2020 Salford Life magazine 
and continued to work with Early Break to ensure public health social media messages 
were being communicated. The Substance Misuse CSP (Community Safety 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Partnership) group was also being re-instated, with an initial meeting held with GMP 
on 8th August 2020.

Details were also provided about the enforcement action undertaken by the relevant 
teams of the Regulatory Services division, but this was generally limited by the powers 
available to them under current legislation and those which applied to the sale of 
nitrous oxide and its use.

Following consultation with the Lead Member for Environment and Community 
Safety, support was to be given to ongoing national campaigns seeking a review of 
current legislation in relation to the sale and use of nitrous oxide as well as raising 
the matter with the local members of parliament and requesting they raise the matter 
with H.M. Government.

Members raised issues and commented on, and noted them, as follows:

(a) As it had a legitimate use in the catering industry, there were currently no 
restrictions on the amounts of the product which could be purchased.

(b) It was agreed that misuse was a common and growing problem amongst people 
in their 30s.

(c) The urgent need to for the revision of current legislation with regard to sale and 
use of was recognised. 

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the report be noted.

                     (2) THAT the Lead Member for Environment and Community Safety 
decision for Salford City Council to support current national campaigns seeking a 
review of current legislation in relation to the sale and use of nitrous oxide, together 
with the matter being raised with the local members of parliament and requesting they 
raise the matter with H.M. Government, be endorsed and the Panel be committed to 
provide any practical backing for this as allowed by its remit.

4. GMP (GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE) UPDATE 

Tom Martin provided an update and general overview of GMP activity in Salford over 
the past 12 months in relation to the following key areas/themes:

 key issues/priorities (what types of crime/ASB which were the most prevalent 
and the focus of activities)

 summary of all crime/ASB types
 challenges 
 successes/achievements
 staffing/establishment in the Salford Division and any pressures on this and 

other resources
 issues specifically arising during the Covid-19 Emergency
 future activities/plans
 crime involving young people, particularly that which seen as “gang” 

orientated and how this was being dealt with, together with 

Page 2



preventative/intervention work to discourage young people now involved in 
low level and nuisance crime, moving onto more serious criminal activity.

The update was broken down to reflect the North East (Broughton, Kersal Trinity, 
Swinton and Pendlebury), North West (Little Hulton, Walkden, Worsley, Boothstown 
and Ellenbrook), South West (Eccles, Barton, Monton, Winton. Irlam and Cadishead) 
and South East (Ordsall, Langworthy, Claremont, Weaste, Irlam O’ th Heights and 
Salford Quays) areas of Salford. 

Members raised issues and commented on, and noted them, as follows:

(a) What impact would current Covid-19 social distancing regulations have in terms of 
misuse of fireworks and an increase in private bonfire celebrations. It was 
acknowledged this was likely to be an increased problem this year and would present  
a new challenge and different focus for the annual Operation Treacle campaign, which 
took place during October and November and aimed to address anti-social behaviour, 
particularly amongst young people and generally arose from both Halloween and 
November 5th Bonfire celebrations.
 
(b) Problems arising from young people gathering in the vicinity of the shopping 
precinct in Little Hulton would be referred to local officers for investigation.

(c) The potential and benefits in using drones as a crime prevention tool.

(d) On going issues with the GMP iOPS crime data recording system and resulting 
sometimes limited or outdated information provided to local ward councillors.  

(e) While an even distribution of officers and other resources across Salford was the 
aim, the changing demands arising from individual areas of the City and emergencies 
would result in their redistribution.  

RESOLVED: (1) THAT Chief Inspector Martin be thanked for his comprehensive 
update, the contents of which were noted.

                      (2) THAT the Panel thanks and appreciation be extended to all GMP 
staff in Salford for their work on behalf of the residents of Salford. 

5. WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21

Members gave consideration to the Panel’s Work Programme for 2020/21. 

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the Panel’s Work Programme for 2020/21, be noted.

                      (2) THAT the following issues be incorporated into the Panel’s Work 
Programme 2020/21 and arrangements made for them to be considered at a future 
meeting(s):

 Dog Fouling - renewal of existing Public Space Protection Orders
 Pest Control Update specifically extent of rat problem

Page 3



6. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting of the Panel would be held on Monday, 19th 
October, 2020, commencing at 2.00 pm. 

Page 4



Summer Provision in Salford (2020)

Summer provision in Salford - Under usual circumstances

SCL offer 6 holiday programmes across the city with attendances ranging from 40-100 CYP 
aged 8-16 daily dependant on each site. These are: Oasis Academy, Swinton & Pendlebury 
Leisure Centre, St. Patricks RC High, Co-op Academy Walkden, Irlam & Cadishead College 
& St. Ambrose Barlow RC. All of these are run solely by SCL and are charged at a 
subsidised rate of £2 per day, per child. The only exception is St. Ambrose Barlow RC which 
offers extended hours and is charged at £15/20 per day; all income generated here is 
reinvested into community activity offered by SCL. Activities offered at each site are sports, 
dance, gymnastics, drama, singing, music, arts & crafts, rock climbing, watersports and 
swimming. Shuttle bus services are offered at some provision where the site may be not 
easily accessible for some parts of the community.

Background

Some of the below partnerships actively collaborated prior to the summer 2020 co-designed 
delivery programme through various community engagement across the city, in the form of 
youth club style evening provision. Foundation 92 had not previously been part of any 
partnership work as their operational capacity has been newly formed this year, they have 
been a welcome addition to this collaboration whilst SCL has operated with significantly 
lower capacity due to furlough. This summer delivery enabled each area of the city to benefit 
from the expertise and local knowledge of each engaged partner, with consultation fuelling 
programme detail and content.

Summer 2020

The aim for summer 2020 was to recognise potential covid-19 specific transmission risks in 
"usual" delivery patterns and negate such risks by applying new delivery measures, whilst 
also adhering to national government restriction such as social distancing. In partnership 
with multiple organisations across the city, SCL highlighted that children and young people 
were at high risk of being physically inactive during this period as well as potentially 
becoming socially isolated, displaying  difficulties relating to their mental health, showing an 
increased need for positive messaging relating to covid-19 measures and how to interact 
socially with responsibility. As a collective, the various partnerships across the city aimed to 
engage each neighbourhood in positive activity in parks and green spaces, providing a 
number of activities considered COVID-secure in adherence to the latest guidance. 

No sessions were advertised by any partner. Some retrospective social media messaging 
was published, but this is framed as "we were here today" rather than a call to invite CYP to 
a single location. Each member of staff was issued PPE and cleaning resources to ensure 
than all equipment used could be thoroughly and routinely cleaned throughout. Activities 
were designed to ensure that limited equipment was used to reduce sharing and close 
gatherings of groups; this included games such as kick ball rounders or foot golf. The 
purpose of this provision was to positively engaged CYP that are already out in groups in 
these parks/green spaces, not to attract new CYP to an area. Staff continuously risk 
assessed sessions to ensure that participants and staff alike were always adhering to social 
distancing guidance (as well as the usual standard RA for sports activity). Where groups 
became too large or non-compliant, staff would stop activity, pack up and leave - thankfully 
this only occurred once where a park was overrun with people (adults and children) due to a 
heat wave, staff removed themselves from the park and returned later on once numbers had 
reduced to run safe activity.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



All of the above measures and provision were carried out with the full backing of local 
authority neighbourhood management and environment teams with a thorough period of 
planning and preparation before the summer period, as well as continued communication 
throughout. Activities provided were based on risk assessments and youth voice via youth 
service consultation in Spring 2020 as well as continued communication with CYP at 
sessions. Additionally, the locations chosen for activity were based on neighbourhood 
knowledge and insight for gatherings of CYP as well as RA for safe spaces for activity whilst 
adhering to ever changing government guidance.

Monitoring and Reporting 

Such duties were undertaken by different partners in different areas due to limited capacity 
at this time, therefore unfortunately we are still collating this data and the below picture is 
ever changing. Initially we know that Irlam was our busiest location due to a large skate park 
in Princes Park where YP regularly gather. Reporting during this period for the most part 
mirrored usual registration procedures, however this summer we additionally implemented 
track & trace data gathering as per government guidance. See below each neighbourhood in 
which an engagement offer was delivered, including which partners were involved, this did 
vary due to capacity limits:

Irlam, Cadishead, Eccles & Barton
Salford Community Leisure, Salford City Council Youth Service & Foundation 92
Activity here was mainly based around sports due to insight gained by youth service youth 
consultation via detached work in spring 2020. Two sites have had regular offerings, namely 
Eccles Recreation ground and Princes Park (Irlam). 
Irlam attendances 231 and 49 individuals
Eccles attendances 71 and 33 individuals

Little Hulton, Walkden, Worsley & Boothstown
Salford Community Leisure, Salford City Council Youth Services, Rio Ferdinand Foundation, 
Little Hulton Big Local, GMP, Maverick Stars & Foundation 92
Activity here has varied including multi-sports, dance and boxing. The partnership meet at a 
central location before relocating at a park within this neighbourhood based on insight from 
youth services and GMP around gatherings of CYP.
Attendance overall (visits): 240
Individuals: 154
Gender split: Male - 93 Female – 61

Swinton & Pendlebury
Salford Community Leisure, Salford City Council Youth Service & Foundation 92
Each partner took one day of provision per week offering multi-sport activity and access to a 
specialist Outdoor adventure facility.
Attendance overall (visits): 67
 Individuals registered - 23
Gender split: Male - 14   Female – 9

Ordsall, Langworthy, Claremont, Seedley & Weaste
Salford Community Leisure & Foundation 92
Here the partnership spread across two locations; Ordsall Park and Chimney Pot Park 
(Langworthy) as well as one weekly outreach session which was used to inform activities at 
the static sessions.
Attendance overall:  416
Individuals registered : 56
Gender split: Male – 39 Female – 17

Page 6



Review

Insight from key partners such as GMP, youth services and neighbourhood management 
helped to identify specific locations for activity. Early discussions have begun across all 
partners involved to agree that some parks/green spaces were not as busy as anticipated 
despite such insight, this may see a shift in delivery to new hot spots in future. Despite 
consistent good weather and the easing of restrictions, all partners noted that engagement 
with YP was positive and only one session across a 6 week period was deemed "unsafe", 
with staff removing themselves from an overcrowded park on a particularly hot, sunny day; 
although activity here resumed later that same day once crowds had reduced. Similarly, 
adverse weather only effected one day (three separate sessions).
Feedback from front line staff suggest that this approach worked positively, staff felt that 
measures put in place enabled them to safely engage groups of YP that were present. 
Activities were devised by staff utilising their expertise and ongoing RA relating to guidance 
and usual risks and hazards for outdoor delivery; this was something that staff found to be 
easily planned and easily implemented with ideas developing continuously. Despite a new 
way of working during this period, staff found that the new working circumstances did not 
prevent them from positively engaging CYP. Additionally, the combination of expertise from 
neighbourhood management, leisure trust, youth services and other partners enabled a 
holistic offer whereby sport was primarily used as a positive engagement tool for other 
services to distribute messaging around COVID restrictions and gather insight from CYP to 
inform future practice.

Limitations 

The clear limitations here were based upon capacity as a key issue, this meant that there 
was a limited as to how many sessions could be provided in each area and citywide as a 
collective. Capacity restrictions were mainly affected by furlough. With limitations on staff 
capacity, those CYP who were in those locations outside of the session times were not 
engaged; additional session times would have allowed more groups to have been engaged 
in the programme. Secondly, even at full capacity, the nature of this strategy was to avoid 
attracting new individuals to a space and to simply engage whoever was already there. This 
meant that staff were not always used to their maximum capacity, if certain sessions were 
quiet, we could not promote the sessions to increase participation as this increases the risk 
of transmission. If COVID transmission was not a concern, promotion would have inevitably 
attracted many more individuals to each session and capacity therefore maximised.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2020/21 

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS

Date Topic/Action Responsible officer(s)

19th October 2020 Waste Strategy and GM Contract - Update 

Salford Community Leisure - Summer Provision 2020

Dog Fouling - Renewal of Public Space Protection Orders - Update

David Seager

SCL

John Wooderson 

16th November 2020 Citywide Commercial Catering (focus on school meals service and re-opening 
of venues post lockdown) - Update 

Bereavement Services - Update

Dominic Clarke

Dominic Clarke

December No meeting -

18th January TBC

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 7



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2020/21 

ABEYANCE LIST

Protocol for Managing Unauthorised Encampments - current legislation and requirements of local 
authorities (information provided further consideration by Panel required to be confirmed)

Stephen Kearney/
Peter Openshaw

Greater Manchester Fire Plan (consultation currently postponed) 

GMFRS Programme for Change 

Update on disabled access to cemeteries and surrounding grounds (TBC)

Unreported crime and its impact in resulting discrepancies in GMP crime statistics (TBC)

Salford City Council Call Centre Performance (TBC)

Pest Control Update 

P
age 10



 
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme 2020/21 

Portfolio of the Board Membership 

1. Community Safety 
2. Communities and Neighbourhoods 
3. Regulatory Services (including Environmental Health, Trading 
Standards, Licensing) 
4. Operational Services (including Citywide, bereavement, 
operational transport, refuse and street cleansing, parks 
management, grounds maintenance) 
5. Salford Community Leisure Client 
6. Cultural strategy 
7. to be the designated Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee 
8. To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this 
functional area.

Councillor Burch (Chair)
Councillor Karen Garrido (Deputy Chair)
Councillor Barnes
Councillor Fletcher
Councillor Humphreys
Councillor Mullen
Councillor Ryan
Councillor Turner
Councillor Walker
Councillor Joan Walsh
Councillor Warner
Councillor Wheeler

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on 21 September 2020 and matters arising
	4 Salford Community Leisure - Summer Provision 2020
	7 Work Programme 2020/21

